Albemarle County Planning Commission
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Final Minutes September 26, 2023

The Albemarle County Planning Commission held a work session on Tuesday, September 26,
2023. at 4:00 p.m.

Members attending: Fred Missel, Vice Chair; Julian Bivins; Luis Carrazana; Karen Firehock;
Lonnie Murray; Nathan Moore.

Members absent: Corey Clayborne, Chair.
Other officials present were: Kevin McDermott, Deputy Director of Planning; Andy Herrick, County
Attorney’s Office; Scott Clark, Conservation Program Manager; Margaret Maliszewski, Planning
Manager; Cameron Langille, Principal Planner; Carolyn Shaffer, Clerk (via Zoom).

Call to Order and Establish Quorum
Ms. Shaffer called the roll.
Mr. Missel established a quorum.

Work Session

ZTA202300006, WPTA202300002 & STA202300003 Riparian Buffer Overlay District Process

Scott Clark, Conservation Program Manager in Community Development said he would begin this
discussion on the riparian buffer ordinance with a brief background. He said the proposal they
were going to discuss was a project that originated from the stream health initiative of 2017. He
said that phase two of that initiative focused largely on rural areas and included an extensive
public input process resulting in 14 proposals for possible future County ordinances, programs,
and education efforts. He said that proposal one was a proposal to move the stream buffer
protections from the water protection ordinance into a new riparian buffer overlay district in the
zoning ordinance.

Mr. Clark said that riparian buffers were important for protecting stream banks from erosion,
reducing flood damage, limiting pollutant flow into their streams and rivers, protecting habitat both
on land and in the streams themselves, and also play a role in carbon sequestration for climate
goals. He said that the question had come up about why they were moving this from the water
protection ordinance to zoning. He explained that it was due to the broader enabling authority for
zoning, which provided a better fit for working with land use and land management. He said that
it offered a more extensive authority than the one provided by the state water control law for the
water protection ordinance.

Mr. Clark said that before they got into the details of the proposal, he wanted to review some
history. He said that the original water protection ordinance from 1998 to 2014 had stream
protections that regulated land cover management in the streams, mainly for development
purposes. He said that however, at the time, they lacked the resources to effectively enforce the
ordinance. He said that in 2014, the focus shifted to buffer regulations related to regulated land-

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 1
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



disturbing activities such as site plans and other activities that involved erosion and sediment
control, and that was where they were now.

Mr. Clark said the proposal was to return to a broader requirement for retaining vegetative stream
buffers, regardless of whether there was land disturbance activity, while maintaining the post-
2014 exemptions for agriculture and forestry. He said that another frequent question was about
the location of these buffers, and if they would be in the same locations as the current water
protection ordinance’s buffer requirements.

Mr. Clark said that there were different standards for development areas depending on whether
they were in a water supply protection area or not. He said that most of their development areas
were not in those protection areas except for Crozet, which had a separate standard for land
adjacent to public water supply impoundments with a wider buffer. He said that in the rest of the
County, the standard was for rural areas, mostly areas other than those adjacent to the
impoundments or the 100-foot buffer on perennial and intermittent streams or the widths of flood
hazard overlay districts. He said that this was exactly the same as the widths they had right now.

Mr. Clark said that permitted uses within this overlay district would include all the ones they saw
here, agriculture and forestry, utilities, infrastructure, basic access, trails, restoration, vegetation
management. He said that the next few slides would mention items that were covered in specific
sections of the ordinance, and he would try to be brief about these for now, but he could always
bring up the full text for review if needed.

Mr. Clark said that all of these permitted uses would be subject to the performance standards in
the Performance Standards Section 30.8.6. He said there were other uses that were permitted
only by County approval, so these were items that would require the riparian buffer administrator’s
approval and a mitigation plan, and these were contained in 30.8.8.

He said that he tried to give them a slide summarizing this, but it was either too long or too
inaccurate, so if they had any questions about these permitted uses and the buffers, he would be
happy to go over them in more detail once they get to the Q&A. He said that outside of those
permitted uses and the buffers, the general buffer management standards were in 30.8.6.

Mr. Clark said that put briefly, they required the retention of existing native vegetation buffers to
be maintained in a natural condition and where a permitted use, such as agriculture or forestry,
ceased permanently for conversion to another use, the buffers would need to be restored. He
said that it was important to note that this did not mean that a pause in use for an agricultural
activity would require restoration, this was when it was a change of use. He said that they had
received many questions from the public during the public input phase about exactly what people
could or could not do within the buffers. He said that they need to add more clarity and more
guiding language in this section, so when this came back for a public hearing, he expected to
have more detail on this.

Mr. Clark said that they had approximately one month-long public input period where they
received approximately 80 detailed responses from members of the public. He said that they
broke them down into these 10 general areas of concern. He said that they had all the summary
of this public input as Attachment E to their staff report and he also had all those lists here in the
presentation. He said that if they had a question about 3B or 5C or something, they could jump to
that and put it up on the screen, but these were the general areas of concern.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 2
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Clark said that the goal for today’s work session was to answer questions about the draft
ordinances or the issues raised in the public input and gather the Commission’s guidance on how
to do the revisions, at which point staff would go away and take everyone’s input and work on
revising these ordinances and preparing them to bring them back for a more formal public hearing.

Mr. Bivins asked how the stream buffer overlay district worked with the Chesapeake Bay Act. He
said that he wondered why they could not just adopt the Chesapeake Bay Act and if that would
not be easier for everyone.

Mr. Clark said that he did not think that adopting the complete Chesapeake Bay Act would not be
easier, as there would be a lot of additional areas they would be obligated to address, such as
septic systems that their current staffing levels were not prepared for. He said that Mr. Pohl and
Mr. Herrick could probably provide better information on this topic since he was not an expert. He
said that they were not required to follow the Bay Act requirements as they were not in the area
where it applies, but they could adopt it if they chose to do so. He said that the scope of adopting
that entire act was a much bigger topic than what they were prepared to talk about today.

Mr. Bivins said that this was a narrower piece of the whole, as opposed to taking the entire broad,
comprehensive piece. He said that when they talked about this, and since they were moving it
from one area to another, to the ordinance, he asked if anyone had an opportunity to quantify the
level of infringement and if there were locations that could be identified in an attempt to have the
largest mitigation impact. He said that he could not imagine that they had staff in place right now,
so he wondered how they would they focus their staff so that if they ended up adopting this and
changing and making it part of the ordinance so they would get the most bang for someone paying
attention to it. He asked if there had been any quantification of the locations where there was a
concentration of infringement or possible infringement.

Mr. Clark said that the implementation of this one included the addition of one more staff member
who would respond to public concerns and assist with the enforcement of any violations, as well
as reviewing development plans. He said that part of how they would address this was through
the development plans that come in, just like they did for all other overlay district requirements.
He said there would also be the possibility of receiving public complaints so they would take them
seriously and respond accordingly. He said that as far as where the less-than-ideal buffers were
located across the County, according to what he had been able to gather from the GIS, they were
fairly scattered.

Mr. Clark said that there were hundreds of parcels with non-forested buffers on them scattered
across the County. He said that it was not that they had one particular watershed or one particular
neighborhood or community which had a huge bulk of the non-forested buffers. He said that they
were really all over the place. He said that the complicating factor was that a lot of the land that
had open buffers was agricultural land, which would not be affected by this anyway. He said that
even if they took those out, there were still thousands of individual parcels that had little bits of
non-forested buffers all over the place.

Mr. Bivins said that one of the things he thought about in reading the ordinance was trying to put
in place a law or ordinance to protect their water system. He said that if they were to look at sort
of the tributaries and the places where the water system was located, he would expect that they
would have spent some time looking to see just how vulnerable the tributaries of the streams or
the lake that flows into the major catchment areas of the water system. He said that when he did

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 3
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



do a cursory look at the GIS, it looked like a lot of the land that would be subject to flowing into
the water system was agricultural land and not developments.

Mr. Bivins said that if they were discussing the preservation of water that people drink, and one
of the main areas for exception was agricultural forestry, he was not quite sure what the major
benefit of this ordinance would be, as it would not give staff nor the Supervisors the ability to come
in and implement even minor mitigation measures, such as planting trees or making buffers
farther away. He asked how they could do that, because the closure of recreational waters due
to algae blooms this year had been quite disturbing for their communities. He said that from what
he could see around those areas, some of it was caused by chemicals running off lawns, which
he hoped they would address, but some of it was simply due to the fact that it was located in a
rural part of the County and subject to all the issues that occur in a bucolic place called Albemarle
County.

Mr. Bivins said that one of the things he was trying to figure out was how this ordinance would
mitigate those types of issues, because while it was good code, he did not know how it would
help advance the kinds of issues they see in the summer or the kinds of issues that threaten their
water system.

Mr. Carrazana said that the first thing they were being asked to do was to move the location of
the Water Protection Act.

Mr. Clark said that the stream buffer portion of the water protection ordinance would be moved to
a new section.

Mr. Carrazana said that moving that was one part of the conversation.
Mr. Clark said that this was not meant to be the whole picture; it was just one piece of it.
Mr. Carrazana asked if staff wanted the Commission to focus on just that piece of it.

Mr. Clark said yes, for now, as this was the one detailed proposal, they had ready for the
Commission.

Mr. Carrazana said that part of the reason for the justification, as he understood it from his reading
of the document, was that in the land use plan, it was a better fit. He asked if Mr. Clark could
elaborate on this point.

Mr. Clark said that Mr. Herrick may be able to elaborate as well, but basically the state Water
Control Act, and their own water protection ordinance were focused on primarily individual land-
disturbing activities, so for someone who was doing groundwork on a development site, they could
regulate that activity and various aspects stream buffers and otherwise through the water
protection ordinance. He said that the difference here with the zoning ordinances was that they
could set an expectation for vegetation management and other forms of buffer protection whether
or not there was a site plan going on, whether or not there was a development project going on.
He said that if there were, as they would expect across the rural areas, thousands of parcels that
did not had any activity going on in terms of new development, but they did had buffers with native
vegetation along the streams, this would help them to protect that, which was something they did
not really have in the current water protection ordinance.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 4
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Missel said that if he understood Mr. Clark’s response, the additional leverage that this
provided was the ability to improve water protection areas outside of the process related to
development. He said that for example, there may be a property owned by someone with a
degraded stream and a water protection area that extended 100 feet on either side showing
degradation, and even without a site plan or the WPO, it could still be improved.

Mr. Clark said that it could be improved anyway, as they did not prevent that and were careful to
allow for restoration activities. He said that essentially, if that same property were a property that
had open and partially forested buffers on a stream in rural areas, nothing about its use would
change. He said that currently, if the landowner wished to clear the forested section of their buffer,
they could do so. He said that under this ordinance, they could not and would be required to retain
that.

Mr. Missel said that was unless it was part of the exemptions.

Mr. Clark said that if there was a permitted use and a mitigation plan, or if there had been a
restoration activity or things like that, but just to take a wooded buffer and clear it because they
were not mowing the yard or because they wanted to see the mountains or something, that would
not be allowed.

Mr. Missel asked if they could still do that in an agricultural or forestal area.

Mr. Clark said that for an agricultural or forestal activity, yes, they were farming. He said that just
because it was zoned agriculture, it does not mean everything was exempt, it only meant those
particular activities that were protected by the state Right to Farm Act were not limited by this
ordinance.

Mr. Carrazana said that he was still struggling to understand where the additional leverage came
from with this move.

Mr. Clark asked if he was referring to the control of the vegetation or uses in the buffers.

Mr. Carrazana said that Mr. Clark had mentioned that they now had the ability to prevent areas
from being deforested. He asked how they had acquired this ability to do that with the proposed
move.

Mr. Clark said that it set management requirements and limited uses in the buffers that were
currently not regulated as far as vegetation removal, structure placement, access, and it allowed
for enforcement through the zoning enforcement process.

Mr. Carrazana asked if they did not have a way of enforcing it now. He said that they could add
those requirements to the current statute.

Mr. Clark explained that the water protection ordinance largely limited their capacity to control
land-disturbing activities.

Mr. Herrick said that it was a matter of the state enabling authority for their current water protection
ordinance was very specific and detailed. He said that therefore, the parameters of their local
water protection ordinance were likewise very specific and detailed. He said that by shifting some
of these regulations over to the zoning ordinance, which had broader and more general state

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 5
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



enabling authority, they could do things that were not specifically enabled under the state water
control law.

Mr. Carrazana asked if they could write additional language requirements.

Mr. Herrick said that their authority under zoning was not unlimited, but it was certainly broader
than what was available under the very specific state water control law.

Mr. Carrazana asked if they had more flexibility under this type of mitigation that they could now
incorporate.

Mr. Herrick said that they could make reasonable land use regulations under the zoning ordinance
in ways that they could not do if they were operating strictly under the state water control law, and
that was the basis for making the move, as it allowed for a broader enabling authority to perform
some of the things that they deemed worthwhile.

Ms. Firehock said to respond to Mr. Bivins, he was not incorrect to look at things like agriculture
and question why they were not doing more. She said that that the Chesapeake Bay Act
specifically examined agriculture, utilities, railroad, stormwater management features, etcetera,
so their hands were tied in that respect, although there certainly were USDA programs. She said
that they gently encouraged their neighbors to fence their cattle out of their stream, and they did
and got paid money for it, so they were very happy about that. She said that there was a lot that
could be done for education, and for the audience, there could be enforcement potential, but there
could be potential for education of landowners.

Ms. Firehock said that she had had good luck with landowners saying they understood that they
liked seeing the whole creek, but part of the reason it was sedimenting in was because they were
seeing the whole creek, and they did not have any tree roots holding that bank in place. She said
that in another landowner example, she said that they were losing 10 feet of bank a year, and
asked what they paid for acre so they could do the math on the half-mile of stream frontage, which
was expensive, and they considered planting trees.

Ms. Firehock said that she wanted to ask a question about the slide, because she was confused
about when permitted uses agriculture forestry cease, the impacted buffers must be restored. She
said that agriculture and forestry did not have to have a 100-foot buffer and could have their best
management practice of 35 feet or whatever they put in their management plan. She said that
they would not have to have a buffer, and she also had not seen where they had to go and replant
the trees. She asked for clarification.

Mr. Clark said that the difference was that with an agricultural activity that was paused or inactive
for a long time, they would not expect a buffer to be replanted, but a property that was in
agricultural use and was subdivided and developed for residential use, they would.

Ms. Firehock said that there was an instance in her neighborhood of Howardsville where a
landowner cleared a forest and claimed it was for forestry purposes, but the trees were never
harvested and were just left lying around. She asked what would happen if someone cleared a
buffer zone and then tried to develop the site, and if they would ask them to put the trees back.
She said that another example was that hip camps were illegal in the County, but she could think
of several that she knew of, and one landowner had cleared some of their land for a hip camp

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 6
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



along the river. She said that in that case, the use was illegal, but she wondered if they would be
made to put the trees back in that type of scenario.

Mr. Clark said that they would need to develop a mitigation plan in order to obtain approval for
how they would proceed with restoring the non-permitted vegetation changes at the buffer of the
site.

Ms. Firehock said that if they did not adopt the ordinance, they would not have to put the trees
back. She asked if that was correct.

Mr. Clark said that they did not have the tools to do that with their current ordinance.

Ms. Firehock said that that was the major difference. She said that in her faux forestry example,
there was nothing they could do to make them put those trees back, and in this illicit land use
case, there was nothing that they could do to make them put those trees back once they had
cleared them. She said that it encouraged bad behavior because people could just say they did it
and the County could not make them fix it, so this was a good tool in their toolbox. She noted that
in Article 3, District Regulations, there was a sentence on page 3, the purposes of the section,
and under C it stated that it was for safeguarding waters from pollution. She said that the wording
was awkward and could be improved by replacing “the safeguarding of clean waters from
pollution” with “safeguarding waters from pollution.”

Mr. Herrick said that he had the same reaction when he saw that, and he discovered that it was
the exact language of the state enabling authority.

Ms. Firehock said that she could imagine someone picking that apart and saying that a stream
was already half-impaired.

Mr. Herrick said that it could also be said that all waters should be safeguarded regardless of their
current condition, yet this was how it was worded in the state law.

Ms. Firehock said that she would withdraw her concern and was sorry for the state’s grammar.

Mr. Murray said that to clarify, the Chesapeake Bay Act did allow for requirements for agriculture.
He said that it required that if agriculture was going to impair the buffer, like if they decided they
want to convert part of the buffer into row crops or pasture, they had to get a conservation
management plan. He said that there was quite a bit involved in that, and it put some conditions.
He said that in fact, in 2014 they actually had a restriction on agriculture for row crops in Albemarle
County, and they did require a buffer for row crops. He said that however, this mysteriously
vanished after 2014 when this rewrite happened.

Mr. Murray said that his understanding with the rewrite was that the regulation had been based
on the Chesapeake Bay Act previously, and then when the new erosion and sediment control
rules came up, staff said that the sediment control rules had buffers and the Chesapeake Bay Act
had buffers, so they should not have buffers in two places, they should just merge these together.
He said that when the dust cleared, the buffers only applied when development was occurring,
because then their buffers became glorified silt fences, because after the development was
finished, they know, all the permits were complete, someone could remove the buffer at will, and
then people could remove streams 10,000 square feet at a time, which was currently the case.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 7
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



He said there were actually provisions for requirements for agriculture, and he knew they were
contentious, but those were in the Bay Act.

Mr. Murray said that as it was said, the nice thing about the Chesapeake Bay Act was that they
can opt into any piece of the Bay Act and opt out of any piece that they liked, so they can pick
and choose what parts go in. He said that one of the big things here was that they need a standard
operating procedure to guide enforcement of this policy. He said that staff will always be
underfunded and understaffed, so when there were not enough staff to handle all the complaints,
they should determine which complaints were prioritized. He said that it seemed like a lot of the
language in the ordinance gave too much power to the riparian buffer administrator, particularly
related to things like ponds. He said that some other localities had a committee that those go to.
He suggested that a Citizen Advisory Committee could continually provide input on this policy and
how it was applied would be very valuable.

Mr. Murray said that he understood that they were going to discuss it in terms of vegetation
management, but he would say right now that the way that the Bay Act worked and the way that
he would encourage them to apply this was that if there was not a language established, buffers
should be established where they do not exist. He said that this should not mean that people had
to go back and plant trees if those trees were not present on the day that this was passed, but
they need to stop mowing the buffer. He said that if they chose to do something more like plant
native plants or perform restoration activities, that should be permitted, but at a minimum they
should stop mowing the 100-foot buffer. He said that that was their policy in 2014 and that should
be their policy now.

Mr. Murray said that it was time to consider a minimal buffer in the development area. He said
that he knew that people would like to push that off to some future date, but it took so long. He
said that they knew that there were problems with this shortly after this change was made in 2014,
it had taken them until now to address this policy. He said that if they did make changes, they
would not happen for another decade. He said that some minimal buffers should apply in the
development areas on intermittent streams. He said that it was kind of crazy that they go from
100-foot buffers in the rural area, suddenly hit the development area, and then had zero-foot
buffers and they could just remove those streams entirely. He said that a 35-foot buffer, or for that
matter, even a 5—foot buffer would be preferable.

Mr. Missel asked if it was true that there was no buffer requirement.

Mr. Murray said that yes, for intermittent streams in the development area, except where the
stream was part of the water supply protection area.

Mr. Missel asked if Mr. Murray was suggesting that apply to areas not within the water supply
protection area.

Mr. Murray said that was correct. He said that the inconsistency had been pointed out about why
they were providing 100-foot buffers on intermittent streams in the development area for the water
supply areas but not the other ones. He said that they needed to reconsider the policy and
believed it should be done now rather than 20 years from now. He asked what transportation
improvements meant. He asked if it included private roads or only VDOT infrastructure projects.
He said that it was written that transportation improvements would be allowed in the buffer.

Mr. Clark asked if Mr. Murray was referring to a particular section.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 8
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Murray said that it was up on a slide when Mr. Clark first began his presentation. He said that
he had had conversations with others about that as well.

Mr. Clark said that the transportation uses that were permitted within the buffers were stream
crossings, bridges, culverts, driveways, and roads as listed in Section 30.8.8. He said that there
were standards for how they could do that, and a mitigation plan would be required, so they were
not exempt from the ordinance; they were permitted with mitigation.

Mr. Murray said that that needed a lot more clarification. He said that he understood if something
were going to cross perpendicular to a buffer and he understood if it were tied into reasonable
use of the lot as that was mentioned later, but it seemed like they would not want to create a
situation where someone could just run the road parallel through the stream buffer.

Mr. Clark said that there was a standard in D that discussed being perpendicular or as close as
possible.

Mr. Murray thanked Mr. Clark for his answer. He asked if he could define the reasonable use of
the lot. He asked if it was referring to use of all the potential development rights on the lot, use of
just the first development right, or was somewhere in the middle.

Mr. Herrick said that that language in the ordinance was to prevent a regulatory taking by ensuring
that reasonable use of the property was still possible even after the adoption of the regulations.
He explained that if all reasonable uses were prevented, someone might file a claim for a
regulatory taking and demand compensation. He said that the basis for this requirement was to
allow for some reasonable use of the law to avoid the regulatory taking.

Mr. Murray said that he appreciated Mr. Herrick’s answer, but it did not answer his question. He
said that they had previously talked about hypothetical development rights, which were
hypothetical in the nature that the topography and natural resources might or might not enable
the complete use of all those development rights. He asked how arrived at that number.

Mr. Herrick said that the reason for wording the regulation in that manner was to allow for case-
specific determinations by the administrator. He said that unfortunately, there was no one-size-
fits-all determination, as each property was unique, and it would be up to the administrator to
determine what constituted reasonable use of the property and whether these regulations would
deprive all reasonable use of the property. He said that a similar analysis was done with variances
heard by the Board of Zoning Appeals, where they must determine if the zoning ordinance
prevented reasonable use of the property in the absence of a variance. He said that the buffer
administrator would make the same sort of determination as to whether this regulation would have
the effect of depriving the owner of the reasonable use of the property.

Mr. Murray said that he would strongly encourage a standard operating procedure should be
developed along with a committee. He asked how streams would be added. He said that when
moving from one section of the code to another section of code, it seemed they were applying an
overlay district, but now they had a map based on which stream buffers were being applied. He
said that often, their streams were poorly documented, so when staff went out to a site, they often
discovered streams that were not on their maps or neighbors noticed these streams that the
County maps did not include.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 9
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Frank Pohl, County Engineer, said that that would happen the same way it was today. He
said they defined this overlay district as a text based on the definition, not as a map, so it could
change based on field conditions.

Mr. Murray asked what happened when residential uses happened on an otherwise agricultural
property and how the rules applied there. He said that he was wondering about silt fences,
because it seemed that if they had to have silt fences if there was potential for erosion near a
development uphill. He asked if that were how they would apply the requirement for stream
buffers. He asked how they would determine what streams were buffered when residential
activities occurred in an agricultural lot.

Mr. Pohl said that the erosion and sediment control requirements would only come into effect if a
permit of that type was triggered. He said that if a building permit exceeded 10,000 square feet in
the rural area for land disturbance, then E&S measures were required to be implemented around
the land, typically, silt fence was placed at the edge of the land disturbance. He said that it was
not necessarily contingent upon a stream; there may not even be a stream, but a silt fence would
still be used. He said that in this ordinance, they excluded E&S measures from buffers unless it
was absolutely necessary, and if it was, it must be within the first 50 feet of the buffer zone, and
it had to be restored once removed and was not a permanent impact. He said that this was a
change from the ordinance before 2019, where it was allowed in the buffer.

Mr. Murray said that he would encourage it, because the temporary disturbance that occurs during
residential development and the long-term impact on streams were two very different things. He
said that staff did not like redundancy or the ordinance, but in his opinion, it made sense to keep
requirements for buffers under erosion and sediment control as well as those here because it
covered both sides. He said that there were questions from the public regarding culverting
streams, and he knew that the Bay Act dealt with this by requiring buffers even if the stream was
buried, so it was fine to obtain a permit to remove the stream, but still required a buffer. He said
that it was not clear to him while reading this whether that would also be a policy under this
ordinance. He asked if a stream still had a buffer if it had been culverted and had no banks
anymore.

Mr. Pohl said that no, based on the definition of perennial streams, it was a natural stream and
not a piped stream. He said that this one was delineated. He said that another issue they had was
that the site-specific evaluation for perennial streams had those sheets which they must go
through, and it had all of the different characteristics of a natural stream. He said that they used
the Fairfax method as well as the North Carolina method, which all pointed to natural stream
characteristics. He said that he had not used that method on a pipe stream, but he would guess
that it would not come up as a perennial stream if they used that checklist to define it if it was
perennial or intermittent.

Mr. Murray said that he could share the relevant guidance from DEQ regarding stream buffers
and retention even after a stream was buried, with some exceptions. He said that he might have
shared this document with them in the past. He said that he strongly encouraged adopting the
policy, as it would be more defensible and in line with DEQ guidance. He said they should keep
in mind any guidance documents issued by DEQ on this topic, as they should be part of their
standard operating procedure except when it did not apply, like he knew that they were not
adopting the agricultural portions of the Chesapeake Bay Act. He asked how they clarified what
was or was not agriculture when there was a dispute about a use.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 10
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Clark said that they had a definition of agricultural use in the zoning ordinance.

Mr. Pohl said that the way they currently determined whether a use was agricultural or non-
agricultural was by calling a representative from the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) to help them make those determinations. He said that it also applied to forestry; they ask
for assistance from the Department of Forestry to help them make those determinations. He said
that if they considered it to be agricultural, they would work with them accordingly and must also
involve the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). He said that it was not just their own
experience, as he was not a farmer himself, so they sought input from other people in the industry
who were experts.

Mr. Murray said that was extraordinarily helpful. He said that if they developed a standard
operating procedure guide, that sort of thing would be helpful to have in there so that the public
could see how these sorts of determinations were formulated.

Mr. Clark said that the work plan for developing this ordinance included a step to write down a
guidance document for the new enforcement position.

Mr. Murray thanked staff for undertaking this huge effort. He said that there were areas where
people had taken a bulldozer to streams in his own back yard, and that currently was a permissible
action on residential properties, and this ordinance would fix that. He commended staff for their
efforts.

Mr. Moore said that there certainly should be an emphasis on maintaining clean water, because
if it was not clean, it was no good. He said that there were plenty of other cities and counties out
there who were harming their residents with tainted water supplies. He said that he would like to
hear more about the decision to keep the buffer at 100 feet in the designated growth areas. He
asked what went into making that call to match the rural areas versus the suggestion of making it
50 feet.

Mr. Clark said that when the 14 proposals went before the Board, the way it was laid out was that
the extent of the buffers would not change, so even though they were changing the character of
the regulations, they were not affecting a new and different area, different landowners, or different
areas of land, so they were carrying forward exactly the same buffer extents that they had before.
He said that whether 100 or 50 feet was the best answer was a much more extensive project to
propose. He said that the intent was to improve the regulation of the same area.

Mr. Moore asked if prior to 2014, even in the development areas, they had the 100-foot buffers.
Mr. Pohl said that in 1998, the 100-foot buffer was established.

Mr. Moore asked how many homes and businesses in the existing development areas, or the
urban ring were located less than a hundred feet from a stream.

Mr. Clark said that there was an extensive portion of the draft ordinance dealing with
nonconformity, so uses that were already located in the buffers can remain and can be replaced
if they were destroyed or something like that. He said that if there were requests to expand or
change a residence or another structure that was in the buffer, then that was one of those items
which would require a mitigation plan. He said that in most cases, they needed look outside the

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 11
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



buffer first, and if it cannot expand outside the buffer, then it can do so with mitigation inside the
buffer, but it depended on the particular type of structure or use.

Mr. Moore said that he had seen the parts of the document that pertained to grandfathering in
existing structures. He asked if there was an estimate of how many such structures already
existed if this would be grandfathered in.

Mr. Clark said that he did not have an estimate on that, but they could certainly take the time to
provide that at the next meeting.

Mr. Moore said that as they talked about land in the development area and what they were building
on it, he would ask how much of that land would be reduced by putting in the 100-foot buffers in
the zoning code.

Mr. Clark said that a mapping exercise would be necessary.

Mr. Murray said that UVA had done an excellent job of managing streams. He said that the South
Lawn Project was an example of how streams can be managed well during development, as there
was an intermittent stream on that property. He said that it was possible to have attractive
developments while still preserving green spaces and water features, such as running water, by
implementing standards for what happens in the development area and having a procedure for
creating managed water features with mitigation plans like those used by UVA.

Mr. Moore said that he was struck by the mitigation plans and possibility of nice water features,
but there were only so many tools in their toolbox for housing affordability, and where they could
build things and said they could build things was one of them. He said that he appreciated Mr.
Murray’s thoughts on mitigation.

Ms. Firehock said that she co-authored the Water Protection Ordinance for the City of
Charlottesville, and they put 100 feet on the three major streams as a part of that ordinance, but
they also engaged in an exercise where they mapped every stream and determined how much
buffer could be put in each area based on the landscape. She said that the City chose not to
adopt the proposed buffers and kept what they had, but this exercise could be done in the County.
She said that if someone wanted to achieve more practical results, they should consider doing
this analysis so that they could see the streams that had room for 100 feet of buffer while others
may only have 30 feet due to the tight landscape.

Mr. Moore said that for the urban ring development pattern, to apply very similar buffer distances
to both giant estates and in the urban ring was what his question was pertaining to.

Ms. Firehock said that she had confidence that they could figure that out.

Mr. Missel said that in the agenda, staff said specifically that the Planning Commission was asked
to provide input regarding the issues raised by the public input to guide upcoming staff revision to
the draft ordinances. He said that he wanted to make sure that staff received what they needed
from the Commission. He said that he wondered in particular if there were any specific things that
staff would like them to address or focus on.

Mr. Clark said that they had no specific ones, but they wanted to make sure they were aware of
them. He said that if they saw something in either the summary or the full input that they had

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 12
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



guestions about or felt a need for clarification on how they answered the question, he would be
glad to hear it, but they did not need to go through all 10 categories.

Mr. Missel said that regarding the process for development in the community, it would be helpful
for developers to understand how this process currently worked and what changes were
proposed. He said that a chart or outline comparing the current requirements with the updated
requirements could be beneficial for Supervisors. He said that the comment about regulatory
taking was interesting, and it revealed that land value was something they need to consider when
enhancing and improving their water quality. He said that they should also be conscious of the
impacts the buffer changes had on landowners. He said that they talked a lot about perennial and
intermittent streams, so he would like to know how often the mapping was updated and how
frequently they checked whether a stream was intermittent or perennial.

Mr. Pohl said that they always did that when they had an application plan that did not show a
buffer on something that could be. He said that it was more done to add something than to subtract
something, but they had few cases where the owners requested to remove it because they say
there was no stream there, but it did not happen often. He said that they would conduct a field
investigation in that circumstance.

Mr. Missel said that the old USGS maps would show perennial streams as blue lines.
Mr. Pohl confirmed that that was an option, and another option was to do a field survey.
Mr. Missel said that he was curious due to climate change and the resulting droughts.

Mr. Pohl said that the Department of Conservation and Recreation had a map that did not match
theirs either, so he used that one as well, and if it showed a solid line he would go out and look at
it.

Mr. Missel said that a large farm adjacent to his personal property is undergoing extensive
earthwork. He said that he wondered if they had considered assessing the greatest offenders,
meaning whether they should focus on the development community or the agricultural and forestal
community. He clarified that he was not suggesting taking away rights from either but simply was
asking if they had considered which one would have a greater impact on the environment. He
said that when he looked at the impacts to that one area compared to even a residential
subdivision following the current WPO requirements, it was much greater. He asked if they had
looked at areas of greatest offense.

Mr. Clark said that there were 14 proposals in total and not just this one, and there were many
options available for addressing stream protection on agricultural land that often-involved cost-
share programs and voluntary programs that he hoped that they would also be pursuing. He said
that he knew the Soil and Water Conservation District was a regulatory tool which largely impacted
land management and land development but may not be the best tool. He said that an issue they
could reasonably address was how do they, particularly in reservoir watersheds, deal with
agricultural impact, but that may not be through this particular tool.

Mr. Missel asked that they continue to look at that.

Mr. Bivins said that he appreciated the elegance of having all of the conditions apply to each one
of the areas, but he would push back a little against having intermittent streams outside of the

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 13
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



water protection area. He said that it may be difficult for staff to determine the size of a lot if they
had to go out and anticipate what might be an intermittent stream on a big or small piece of
property in the development area. He said that additionally, he was not sure what benefit there
would be from including the regulation of the streams versus what Mr. Missel was speaking about,
where they were trying to ascertain what were the big portions of their streams or pooled water
impoundments that really had an impact on their drinking water. He said that if they had to
prioritize where funds should go, he would prefer to maintain and extend their drinking water
supply, as opposed to trying to do something very broad. He said that given that they did not
currently have a staff person who would walk around and check all of those out, and this would
fall entirely on the County Engineer until he delegated it to somebody else, he would prefer that
they look at those areas where they had the least amount of imbalance and the most amount of
risk. He said that that was where if they were looking at those kinds of dollars, and he would like
to allocate those dollars where they could have the highest return on their investment.

Mr. Carrazana asked to see the list of public comments. He said that in particular, he wanted to
touch on prioritizing major streams that were obviously impacting their water quality and the
Chesapeake Bay. He said that he loved being real about what they could accomplish. He said
that the statement would be that some buffers were better than no buffer. He said that prioritizing
and looking at what could be achieved in major streams would be something that they should
probably spend some time doing. He said that they should determine the extent of the stream
buffer and how mapping can help show where they got the most bang for their buck. He said that
he would encourage looking at those areas, and it seemed they had an example done for
Charlottesville, and whether it was adopted or not, it was perhaps worth looking at for Albemarle
County.

Mr. Murray said that the headwaters of a stream were actually the most important part of the
stream, comparing them to the capillaries in the human body, which if they stopped working,
would be fatal. He said that likewise, if they removed all the headwaters of a stream, they would
automatically have an impairment in the stream. He said that in the case of Moores Creek, which
had a state of impairment, if they removed the headwaters, there was almost nothing that could
be done to fix it anymore, and they would have a polluted stream running through their
development area.

Ms. Firehock clarified that the headwaters could be intermittent. She said that it was a good point.

Mr. Murray confirmed that the headwaters could be intermittent. He said that having a minimal
buffer of some kind, even if it was a managed stream like the South Lawn Project, provided a
stormwater benefit and may improve the quality of what was on the surface and saved that stream.
He said that if all the headwaters were sacrificed, then the stream had been lost.

Mr. Bivins said that he was not in disagreement with Mr. Murray because he had just done what
he suggested, which was to make a decision that the body of water flowed into the water system,
and therefore, there was a high value in protecting it, as opposed to something that only flowed
into the water system if there were heavy rains like the previous week, and other than that was
just dirt. He said that he agreed that if they were looking at the headwaters of what flowed and
had RWSA work with staff, they should look at everything that fell as a possibility of flowing into
Moores Creek. He said that however, if there was no possibility of the flow, he did not understand
why they put that barrier. He said that they should allow for some flexibility in the code to enable
them to take it and be able to come alongside those waterways and things that had been
mentioned.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 14
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Murray said that a good method to implement this would be to enforce buffers on all
intermittent streams within impaired watersheds. He said that if they did that, it would create an
automatic incentive for individuals to clean up the watershed, as otherwise they would lose
property value.

Ms. Firehock said that in hydrology, there can exist a situation where an intermittent stream
becomes perennial due to extensive land development. She said that this may result in streams
changing their classification. She said that she was not saying that it was a problem, but it could
be seen where intermittent streams were now perennial because there was so much runoff.

Mr. Murray said that he recalled trying to see a City Councilor in Charlottesville a while back, and
she was going around talking to constituents about what they wanted most. He said that one child
told her that what they wanted most of all was a stream to play in, and she said that there was a
stream that went right through his backyard, but they put it in a pipe. He said that this was an
example of how they were taking away something from urban residents, in this case low-income
residents, that would like to have that feature.

Mr. Missel said that they had discussed a fair amount about education, and what those
opportunities were out there for that. He said that this was a regulatory issue, with the perception
being that they were adding regulation or process to it. He said that it would be interesting to
balance it with some opportunities for improvement to stream buffers. He said that there was a
recommendation in one of the public comments to use native plantings. He said that it was a no-
brainer, and he knew they would add it back in, but he did not necessarily know himself what
other opportunities may be available for them to take advantage of.

Ms. Firehock said that there was more money available for riparian buffer planning than had ever
been in the history of the government funding support of such things. She said that there was
Department of Forestry Clean Waters for the Bay and U.S. Forest Service just put out almost $1.5
billion for tree planting. She said that the James River was in their watershed and there was a
huge amount of money in the James for planting, so it was not just about having a regulation but
rather, there was a ton of money and technical support and people to come to their property and
help them.

Mr. Missel said that maybe that did not exist necessarily in this information, but maybe there was
a reference to a tool or resource that provided those resources.

Ms. Firehock confirmed that there was an online tool that could be used.

Mr. Clark said that they could update the environmental stewardship hub on the County’s website
with that information as well. He said that the next step for this process would be to make revisions
based on the Commission’s input as well as public comment, then staff would return with a revised
version of all of these ordinances for a public hearing.

Ms. Firehock said that she hoped they could really push forward the notion of strong protection
that they once had. She said that they were introducing a new code, but this was not like imposing
new, harsh regulations. She said that people had lived here for a long time, and most or all of
them did during the buffer period, and there was no closure of businesses, farms did not cease
operations. She said that they were just trying to reinstate what they should be doing in the face
of climate change.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 15
FINAL MINUTES WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING- September 26, 2023



Mr. Murray said that when they looked at stream health, it had continued to decline, and while not
as rapidly in their area, the trend was still ongoing. He said that if they expected stream health to
improve, they needed to do more, and could not just do less and hope for an improvement.
Recess
The Planning Commission recessed the meeting at 5:15 p.m. and reconvened at 6:00 p.m.
Call to Order
Mr. Clayborne called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Ms. Shaffer called the roll.
Mr. Clayborne established a quorum.

Other Matters Not Listed on the Agenda from the Public

Mr. Clayborne asked if any members of the public would like to speak. Seeing none, he asked
the Clerk if anyone was signed up online to speak.

Ms. Shaffer said that there were none.
Consent Agenda

Mr. Clayborne said that there were no items on the Consent Agenda.
Public Hearing

SP202300007 Home Depot Qutdoor Storage, Display, and Sales

Ms. Margaret Maliszewski, Manager in the Planning Division of Community Development, said
that she would be presenting this entrance corridor-related application. She said that this was a
request for a special use permit for outdoor storage, display, and sales associated with a new
Home Depot store. She said that the site was proposed for the Fashion Square Mall, located near
the intersection of Route 29 and Rio Road. She said that the Sears store, currently located at the
north end of the mall, would be demolished for this proposal, and a new Home Depot store would
be constructed in its place. She said that both Route 29 and Rio Road were entrance corridors,
and the proposed displ